SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
March 26, 2012
1:03 p.m

1: 03: 33 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co- Chair Stednan called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 1:03 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Lyman Hof f man, Co- Chair
Senator Bert Stedman, Co-Chair
Senator Lesil McQuire, Vice-Chair
Senator Johnny Ellis

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senat or Donny O son

Senat or Joe Thomas

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Senator Linda Menard; M chael Rovito, Staff, Senator
Menard; David Livingstone, Financial Advisor, Citigroup;
Grant Holland, Vice-President, CDM Smth; Jeff Otensen,
Director, Dvision of Program Devel opnent, Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities; Angela Rodell, Deputy
Conmi ssioner, Treasury Division, Departnent of Revenue;
Jeff Stark, Assistant Attorney General, Departnment of Law,
M chael Foster, Chairman, Knick Arm Bridge and Toll
Aut hority;

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

None
SUMVARY

SB 80 KNI K ARM BRI DGE AND TCLL AUTHORI TY



#sb80
SENATE BI LL NO. 80

"An Act relating to the authority and obligations of
the Knik Arm Bridge and Toll Authority, to bonds of
the authority, and to reserve funds of the authority;
authorizing the state to provide support for certain
obligations of the authority; relating to taxes and
assessnents on a person that is a party to an
agreenent with the authority; and establishing the
Kni k Arm Crossing fund."

1: 04: 24 PM

Senat or Thomas MOVED to ADOPT proposed CS SB 80, work draft
27-LS0430\T, Martin, 3/23/2012.

Co- Chair Stedman OBJECTED for purpose of discussion.

M CHAEL ROVI TO, STAFF, SENATOR MENARD, expl ai ned the changes
incorporated in the <current bill. He stated that the
entirety of Section 1 of the bill had been del eted, renoving
t he | anguage pertaining to the obligation of the state. He
furthered that on page 2, "nust" was replaced by "may", and
remai ning sections were renunbered to reflect the deletion
of Section 1.

1: 06: 21 PM

Senator Ellis asked for clarification concerning the
del etion of the |language in Section 1 that had detailed the
state's financial obligation to the project.

M. Rovito clarified that what was del eted was the explicit
mention of the obligation of the state. He nmintained that
the noral obligation of the state would remain since the
Knick Arm Bridge and Toll Authority (KABATA) was a state
cor porati on.

Senator Ellis thought that the |anguage in the bill should
nore clearly detail where the financial responsibility
would ultimately fall.

1: 07: 44 PM

Co- Chair Stedman W THDREW his OBJECTION to adoption of the
commttee substitute. There being NO OBJECTION, work draft
27-LS0430\T, Martin, 3/23/2012 was adopt ed.

Senat e Finance Committee 2 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



SENATOR LINDA MENARD provided a breakdown  of t he
| egislation. She explained that the bill would increase
KABATA' s bond authority from $500 million to $600 million.
She said that the bonds would be private equity bonds;
federal, tax exenpt bonds, issued by a state agency. She
stressed that the state had no financial obligation tied to
the bonds, but would be a conduit issuer. She continued
that the bill required the State Bond Conmmittee to review
t he bonds and nmake assurances that the bonds confornmed to a
sound financial policy. She furthered that Sections 4 and 5
of the bill provided provisions of for a project reserve
fund established under Section 7. She shared that the fund,
titled "The Knik Arm Crossing Fund”, would be housed in the
Department of Revenue (DOR) and would be used to satisfy
the availability paynent during the initial years of the
bridge until the toll revenue was sufficient to retire the
fund. She added that Section 6 exenpted the crossing from
state and l|ocal property tax, whether public or privately
oper at ed.

Senator Menard concluded that cost of not proceeding wth
the bridge could be $3 to $4 billion based on 2008 figures
to inprove the den and Park H ghways, which would conme out
of the Statewi de Transportation |nprovenent Program (STIP).
She shared that the new acronym for the bridge was Bridge
of Statew de Significance (BGOSS).

1: 10: 53 PM
AT EASE

1:15: 11 PM
RECONVENED

Co-Chair Stedman noted the zero fiscal note from the
Depar t ment of Transportation and Publ i c Facilities
(DOT&PF). He felt that the zero fiscal inpact to the state
reflected in the note was questionabl e.

1:16:12 PM

M CHAEL FOSTER, CHAIRMAN, KNICK ARM BRIDGE AND TOLL
AUTHORI TY, testified in support of the legislation. He
observed that the population was expected to grow 118
percent between 2010 and 2035. He stated that the
Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MIP) showed a 74 percent
traffic growh in the area from Eagle R ver to Ekultna
(39,000 to 68,000). The Anchorage bowl would grow by 15
percent. He said that available |and was being depleted in

Senat e Finance Committee 3 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



the Anchorage area. He furthered that growth was predicted
in outlying areas.

M. Foster observed that KABATA, state, and MIP nodels were
based on the Institute of Social and Econom c Research's
(I'SER) 2009 nodel. He concluded that "w thout a doubt" the
Sout h-central area of Al aska was grow ng.

M. Foster spoke to traffic. In 2010, 30,000 vehicles
transited under the Ekultna Bridge; only 15,000 went under
the bridge in 1985. He maintained that the Ekultna Bridge
was the first neasuring point of north bound traffic into
Anchorage. He pointed to substantial growh from 1985 to
2010, and concluded that simlar growh was expected from
2010 to 2025. Traffic nodels suggested that the d enn
H ghway Ekultna overpass wuld grow from 30,000 to
approximately 65,000 vehicles. He stated that six-Ilane
traffic on the @ enn H ghway would increase from 52,000 to
110, 000 vehicles, based on the population nodel wthout a
bri dge. He concluded that the denn H ghway was at
capacity. He acknow edged that additional vehicles could be
added, but nmintained that traffic delays and accidents
woul d occur.

1:19: 50 PM

M. Foster discussed the financial repercussions of not
building a bridge. He asserted that the cost of sinply
upgrading the denn Hghway for future population was
estimated by DOT&PF in the 2008 STIP as $3 billion dollars.

M. Foster observed that KABATA had been created by the
| egislature in 2003, with the mssion to connect the east
and west sides of Cook Inlet through a crossing. He
observed that KABATA was in private/public partnership
procurenent where a private partner would be responsible
for financing, designing, building, operating, nmaintaining
and toll collection. The public partnership pertained to
the toll revenue. The current structure worked with an
availability paynent; as toll revenue canme in, KABATA woul d
nmake a paynent on a quarterly basis to the devel oper for
the cost of financing, designing, building, operating, and
maintaining the bridge. He <concluded that the state's
obligation would be to pay the developer for their
i nvest nent .

Senat e Finance Committee 4 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



M. Foster observed that the cost estinates were done by
different independent estinmators: DOT&PF, Major Projects
Federal Hi ghways, and two by KABATA. Al estimations put
the first phase of the bridge at $720 to $730 nillion
dollars. Phase 1 would be the bridge, which would span
92,000, and would have connections on both sides (14,000
f oot crossing).

1: 22: 51 PM

M. Foster spoke to phase 2, which wuld be the
| ngra/ Ganbel | connection that would connect the bridge to
| ngra/ Ganbel | .

M. Foster observed that the bridge would be built as a
four lane foundation for final conpletion. The initial deck
woul d be two |anes, 44 foot w de. Phase 2 would expand the
road to four lanes with pedestrian and bi ke access on the
bri dge.

1: 22: 57 PM

M. Foster concluded that the legislation would allow the
state to be a conduit for the private devel oper to access
tax exenpt bonds. He maintained that the bonds woul d not be
added to the state's "book™ or be part of the state's bond
capacity, but wuld be strictly pass through private
activity bonds. The legislation would increase authority to
$600 million in tax exenpt bonds.

M. Foster spoke to property tax. Private devel opers would
not be liable for any property tax. The bridge would be an
asset of the state and controlled by KABATA or the state of
Al aska. The developer would only have the availability
paynment obligation of the state.

1: 24: 23 PM

M. Foster clarified that the reserve fund would represent
the noral obligation of the state. Toll revenue was
anticipated to be $100 mllion short during the initial
seven years. The state needed to denonstrate the ability to
cover the shortfall to the devel oper through the
avai lability paynent. The availability paynent would be
simlar to a |ease paynent. The reserve fund would be
subj ect to appropriation. There would be a noral obligation
for the state to appropriate to the fund, and pay for the
infrastructure. The deleted Section 1 had been subject to

Senat e Finance Committee 5 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



the $1 billion, and was changed to the noral obligation
relating to the reserve fund; subject to appropriation, to
handl e the shortfall of toll revenue in the initial years.

M. Foster observed that the state was estimated to receive
$1.1 billion in net revenue over the 35 years of the
concession, beyond liabilities of KABATA, to pay for
operations and nake availability paynents to the private
partner. These funds could be used statewide for a variety
of Title 23 projects: roads, ports, harbors, bridges, or
mar i ne hi ghways.

1: 27: 08 PM

M. Foster estimated that were the bridge to be built, over
60 years, $9.9 billion woul d be avai |l abl e for
transportation needs statew de through the reserve fund or
an established transportation fund. He added that excess
toll revenue would go to the reserve fund and be
appropriated under title 23. He stressed that the bridge
would be built for the needs of the future. He observed
that the denn H ghway adequately handled current needs,
but wi thout an upgrade, maintenance costs woul d increase $3
to $4 billion, which would place a burden on STIP funds.

1:29:17 PM

Co- Chair Stednan wondered whether the comrmittee would be
further i nformed  of the financial nodel and cost
projections for the project. He requested nore data to
assure the conmmittee that the exposure to the state was
worth the risk.

M. Foster deferred the question to the avail abl e experts.

1: 32: 28 PM

Senator Egan desired a nore clear definition of the "noral
obligation of the state" witten into the |anguage of the
bill. He noted that he and the Co-Chair both represented
Sout heast Al aska, and queried the need for either of them
to feel norally obligated to the project.

Senator Ellis referred to a nmenorandum from the Institute
of Social and Economic Research (ISER), dated March 22,
2011(copy on file). He noted that M. Foster used |SER
research as a justification for the projections. He
observed that the letter strongly objected to the use of
| SER projections in KABATA s presentations on the project.

Senat e Finance Committee 6 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



1: 34: 39 PM
AT EASE

1: 39: 43 PM
RECONVENED

Senator Ellis explained that the I SER neno was delivered in
the interest of disclosure.

M. Foster responded to concerns presented by the letter.
He maintained that the 2009 |SER nunbers were accurate
popul ation nunbers. He <clarified that when attributing
figures to ISER, he used the institute figures, not the
bridge authority's projections. He noted that he had not
done a conparison between the |ISER nunber and the
authority's nunbers.

Co- Chair Stedman understood that the authority was in the
process of drafting a witten response to the |ISER nenb. He
requested copies be distributed to commttee nenbers.

M. Foster replied in the affirmative. He assured the
commttee he would provide the information as soon as was
possi bl e.

1:43: 46 PM

DAVI D LIVINGSTONE, FINANCI AL ADVI SOR, CITlIGROUP, spoke to
the developnent of the projections. He shared that for
KABATA; he had taken capital costs and construction costs,
assunptions that had been created by HDR (a national civi
engineering firm) and audited by several other firms. The
estimates included a $62 mllion construction contingency,
whi ch consi dered any potential cost overruns. He said that
traffic and revenue projections were done by CDM + WI bur
Smth Associ ates. He added that Citigroup had been
financing toll roads since the 1950's and had used the
Wl bur Smth projections many tinmes. He relayed that WI bur
Smth also created operation and nmi ntenance, and capita
expenditure projections, for the cost of running the toll
syst ens.

1:46: 24 PM

M. Livingston stated that from the information provided by
Wl bur Smith a financial nodel was created, financed with a
conbi nation of equity and debt. He stated that conservative

Senat e Finance Committee 7 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



assunptions of 12 percent equity return had been used, as
wel | as debt rates of 50 to 75 basis points.

1:47: 34 PM

Co-Chair Stedman interjected that the stress testing of the
financial nodels should be discussed.

M. Livingston reviewed a graph provided to the conmmttee
titled, "60 Year Cost and Revenue Projection"(copy on
file). He stated that the red bars represented the
availability paynments made by KABATA to the private
devel oper over the next 35 years, from the beginning of
comer ci al oper ati ons. He noted that in 2032 the
avai lability paynents were charted to increase because at
that point the devel oper would add two additional |anes to
the bridge and connection roads. He referenced the navy
blue line, which represented KABATA adm nistrative costs

the Ilight blue bars indicated the KABATA total debt
service. He furthered that in 2053 the bars dropped; these
bars detailed the costs after the concession was over and
the private developer would turn the responsibility back
over to KABATA. He concluded that the bars were higher than
the revenue curve in the first eight years; as devel opnent
progressed availability paynments were expected to be
greater that the toll revenues, $100 million would be drawn
out of the reserve fund during the initial years. He
relayed that surplus revenues, the green area above the
bars, totaled $9 billion which would be available for
future. He added that the mpjority of the surplus would be
reaped after 2052. He asserted that a conservative set of
assunptions had been wused in the developnment of the
projections and that the sensitivities had been run. He
said that traffic and revenue probabilities had been run
with various assunption percentages. He maintained that
under all the projections done by KABATA the project, over
the first term of the concession, would create a positive
cash-flow for the state.

1: 52: 24 PM

Co- Chair Stednman queried the dollar anmounts assigned to the
equity return target of 12 percent and the cost of debt
aggregate of 6.42 percent.

Senat e Finance Committee 8 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



M. Livingston replied that it had been assunmed that the
project would be funded with approximately $80 nillion of
equity and $710 mllion of debt.

Co-Chair Stedman asked why the bank was not fully
underwriting the project.

M. Livingston replied that the state had banks and equity
investors willing to lend approximately $800 nillion to
build, finance, operate, and maintain the road. In return
annual availability paynments from KABATA were expected to
cover the cost of the private parties taking the risk. He
said that the private investors would be responsible for
any cost overruns. He explained that the availability
paynment s provi ded assurances t hat i nvestors woul d
eventually be paid for the investnent. He maintained that
the project would require no future appropriations.

1:55:48 PM

Co-Chair Stedman wunderstood that projects of this size
often had cost overruns, that an overrun of 20 percent
could be considered a success. He assuned that overruns for
the project could reach into the $100 mllion range. He
gueried where extra funding would cone from and how the
state could be protected fromoverrun responsibility.

M. Livingston replied that overrun funding would cone from
the concession conpany; if the private investors did not
finish the project on tine, and on budget, they would
accept the risk. He stated that KABATA sel ected the funding
approach specifically to assure that cost overruns did not
beconme a burden of the state.

Co-Chair Stedman surm sed that there would be no risk of
state exposure, overreaching $700 million in debt issuance,
and that stress tests performed by the conmmttee would
mrror the nunbers offered by KABATA.

1:58:47 PM

M. Livingston replied that that was largely true. He
gualified that there were "uncontrollable circunstantial
events" that could require additional funding from KABATA
He shared that if there were soil test variations in the
di fferent ar eas of constructi on, KABATA could be
responsi ble for additional paynents. He felt that the sub-

Senat e Finance Committee 9 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



set of financial risks were relatively small, conpared to
the size of the project.

Co-Chair Stedman probed the potential risk, small or
ot herwi se, that could be deferred to the state.

M. Livingston replied that if the toll revenues cane in
| oner than the projections, the state could be asked for
future appropriations to cover the availability paynents.

2:01:15 PM

Co-Chair Stednan asked if Citigroup had perfornmed stress
test on projects under consideration. He wondered where the
stress test information for the project could be found so
that the commttee could assess the inpact to the state.

M. Livingston reiterated that conservative projections had

been used. He said that there was a significant
construction and operation mai nt enance expenses
contingencies witten into the bill; higher rates than

current markets, and higher equity returns, had been
enpl oyed. He maintained that 100's of different projections
for KABATA had been run, including sone using |ower toll
revenues than indicated in the chart. He said that the
project presented cash-flow neutral over 35 years even
under a 40 percent toll revenue shortfall.

Co- Chair Stedman pointed out that the figures nentioned had
not been nade available to the comrittee. He nmaintained
concern that an over run in the $100s of mllions could
result in additional financial obligation to the state. He
felt even m nor exposure to the state should be avoi ded.

M. Livingston could not comment on soil testing bid for
engi neers. He asserted that if there was a $200 mllion
cost overrun, lenders would typically walk away from the
project. He reiterated that the obligation of paynents
woul d not occur if the bridge was not operational.

2:04:31 PM

Co- Chair Stedman noted that $80 nillion in equity and $700
mllion in debt wuld give the I|ender considerable
| ever age.

Senat e Finance Committee 10 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



M. Livingston clarified that Citigroup was a financial
advisor to KABATA and could not be a Ilender due to
conflicts of interest.

2: 05:30 PM

M. Foster spoke to the procurenent process. He stated that
the in 2011, 6 subm ssions were received for concessions.
Concessions were made up of: equity partners, financial
partners, contractors, desi gners, bui | der s, t ol
collectors, and operators. He shared that three submtters
were invited to submt proposals. He said that the draft
request for proposal (RFP) was being created by the
Depar t ment of Law. He added that DOA also had
representation for the contract process. He said that when
the RFP was conpleted the three proposers would conpare
bids, which were primarily the availability paynent. He
believed that KABATA would commt to the availability
paynent. He reiterated that cost overruns would be the
probl em of the builder and not KABATA. He said that KABATA
woul d not make any paynents until the bridge was open. He
furthered that the risk to the authority was the
avai lability paynment and that the state would not be liable
for cost overruns.

2:09: 04 PM

Co-Chair Stednman nmaintained concern with the reality of
cost overrun connected to projects of this magnitude. He
opined the lack of financial inpact information in the
presentation. He stressed that the funding under discussion
was significant, with sizeable exposure to the state if the
project should fail.

M. Livingston comrented that infrastructure devel opnents
cost noney. He said that the state could go about the
project on its own, but that the KABATA plan should be
seriously considered.

2:12: 05 PM

GRANT HOLLAND, VI CE-PRESIDENT, CDM SM TH, stated that CDM
Smith had been conducting traffic and revenue consulting
since 1950, and was considered the prinmer traffic and
revenue consultant in the industry investnment conmunity. He
shared the need for traffic and revenue consulting had
growmn out of general |lack of know edge concerning the
managenent of tolls. He elaborated that CDM Smth had

Senat e Finance Committee 11 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



worked regqularly training rating agencies and toll
authorities on the intricacies of traffic revenue
proj ections.

2:13:55 PM

M. Holland explained that the <crossing connected a
| andmass that was conpletely bound from a devel opnent
standpoint to the nearest area of devel opable private |and.
He remarked that the alternative to the bridge was a 90
mle road, so it seemed that the project was valuable from
a | ogi c point-of-view

2:15: 07 PM

M. Holland stated that there had been a quick and
i nexpensive initial study of KABATA in 2005. Another study
was done in 2007, and contained every piece of analysis
that would be found in an investnent grade study. He
expl ai ned that an upgraded study had been done in 2011 to
reflect current market conditions. He listed severa
factors considered when conducting the studies: |ocal
forecasts, |ISER Studies (the basis of the 2007 study), the
Bureau of Labor nunbers, and independent studies. He
detailed that the studies often required independent
econonmi ¢ analysis to verify local bias in forecasts.

2:17: 59 PM

M. Holland discussed econonmi c nodeling. One approach was
to begin from historical nunbers and work downwards, the
other was to begin at the bottom and work upwards. He noted
that the anal yses were not nutually exclusive. He said that
the CDM Smith analysis started at a traffic analysis |evel
The firm had interviewed 23 people responsible for the
pl anni ng and managenent of economic growth in the Anchorage
area. He furthered that they had talked to planning
departnments for further collaboration. He said that the
analysis was then built form the bottom up conparing
historical trends. He noted that in the 2007 study the |ISER
forecast and the CDM Smith forecast had variations, however
enpl oynent forecasts were virtually identical

2:21:24 PM

Senator Thomas surmi sed that the projections for popul ation
growh were the anticipated nunbers for the Point MicKenzie
ar ea.

Senat e Finance Committee 12 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



M. Holland clarified that the estinmation had been for the
breaki ng point for the Knick and Fairvi ew areas.

2:22: 25 PM

Senator Thomas understood that a doubling of vehicles
crossing the Knick River was expected by 2035.

M. Holland replied that it was an undeniable fact that
econom ¢ and population growh would occur in the WMat- Su.
He stressed that the growh would generate traffic. He said
that building the bridge would shift where the growh
occurr ed.

2:23:59 PM

M. Foster interjected that in 1985 it was counted that
15,000 cars travelled under the Eklutna Bridge daily; the
nunber rose to 30,000 in 2010. He noted that the traffic
woul d increase to 65,000 by the year 2035. He stressed that
wi thout the bridge, the traffic on the G enn H ghway would
doubl e.

2:25:29 PM

Senat or Thonas expressed concern as to how the anmount of
expected increased activity was calculated. He felt that
the toll should be reduced once the bridge was paid off. He
wondered what recourse could be taken if the projected
nunbers were w ong.

M. Holland responded that the bridge would induce growh

He thought that when the concession was renoved in 2035 the
state could determne then whether or not the tolls should
be mai nt ai ned.

Senator Thomas felt that the idea that the bridge would
spur grow h was conceptually unclear. He questioned the 89
mles figure in the study.

2:28:54 PM

M. Holland responded that the 89 mles neasured from the
edge of a planned intersection on the west side of the
crossing to Central Anchorage. He believed that the growh
woul d occur in the area because it was a deep water port,
val uabl e for shipping natural resources. He understood that
the isolation of Port MacKenzie from Anchorage had retarded

Senat e Finance Committee 13 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



growh in the area. He said the bridge would turn the 89
mle tripintoa 15 mle trip.

2: 30: 33 PM

Senat or Thomas understood that if the bridge was not built,
people working in Port MacKenzie would have to drive 89
mles to get to Central Anchorage.

M. Holland replied in the affirmative.

Senator Ellis referred to the Wittier Tunnel toll charge,
which was a snmaller project proposed by KABATA that had
used CDM Smth traffic projections. He asserted that the
traffic projections for the toll facility had Dbeen
overestimted, and that soneone had "failed spectacul arly"
in making accurate estimates for the basis of public policy
and budget decisions. He believed that caution should be
taken in using the projections established by DOI&F and
CDM Smith on an even | arger project.

2:32: 30 PM

M. Holland replied that he had no information concerning
the Whittier Tunnel. He said that since 1995 there had been
22 green field (new) projects had been financed, 10 of
whi ch had exceeded projections in the first 5 years. He
furthered that 4 were within 95 percent of the projections.

2:33:46 PM

Senator O son referred to a March 2012 Dittman Research &
Communi cations survey, page 5, which showed that 58 percent
of people surveyed, did not want the bridge to be built.

M. Foster responded that the survey asked three questions:
build it now, build it later, don't build it; the build it
| ater nunbers were assumed as positive. He added that in
the nost recent Dittnen survey 65 percent of Al askans, and
70 percent of South-central Anchorage said the bridge
shoul d be built now

Co-Chair Stedman rem nded the commttee that finance policy
deci sions were not dictated by polls.

2:36:40 PM

JEFF OTTENSEN, DI RECTOR, DI VISION OF PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT,
DEPARTMENT  OF TRANSPORTATION AND PUBLIC  FACI LI TI ES,

Senat e Finance Committee 14 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



testified that the KABATA project was inportant to the
entire state in order to provide redundancy for a single
route area. He spoke to the states responsibility for
projects necessitated by the bridge. He felt that the need
for the project was obvious when considering |ooking the
expected future population growh. He added that the growh
had and would continue to create a demand for roads to be
built in Anchorage, the den and Parks H ghways, and the
Mat - Su Borough. He asserted that the bridge would not be
built wusing state general and federal funding sources;
ostensibly bringing new noney to the table. He said that
the roads that would need to be built as a result of the
bri dge were already needed in the area.

2:40: 57 PM

Senator Ellis wondered if DOT&PF could wait till the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit (LB&A) audit was conpl ete.

M. Otensen acknow edged the audit. He stated that he
would return to the commttee with an answer.

Senat or Ellis asked about the over inflated traffic
estimations for the Whittier tunnel.

M. Otensen recalled the project was chanpioned by the
governor at the tine. He said a senior engineer in DOT&PF
had been asked to nove forward with the project over the
obj ections of the rest of the departnent.

Senator Ellis surmsed that experience could teach that
powerful political interests could pressure DOT&PF into
giving the green-light to projects under dubi ously
proj ected assunptions.

2:44: 32 PM

Senator Thomas noted letter from DOT&PF dated April 7, 2011
(copy on file) which sunmmarized the nunbers for the
project. He queried how a possible decrease in federal
funding would inpact the projected inconme from the bridge
tolls.

2:46: 03 PM

M. Otensen read fromthe letter:

Senat e Finance Committee 15 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



"The total cost of the projects not covered by tol
revenue that influence bridge and general network
traffic flowis $1.8 mllion (1.4 mllion in Anchorage
and $400 mllion in Mat-Su) to be constructed over a
period of 20 vyears. Regular federal highway aid
funding requires a 10 percent state match. This | eaves
$1,620 mllion that nust be funded from regular
hi ghway aid dollars. Dividing $1,620 over a period of
20 years results in a hypothetical annual federa
hi ghway funding need for these projects of $81 mllion
per year. The state currently receives $400 million in
regul ar f eder al highway aid funding per year.
Allocating $81 nmillion per year for the regional
network projects would anmobunt to 20.25 percent a year
of the overall anount."”

2:48: 01 PM

M. Otensen observed that future federal funding was
unknown. He stressed that need for transportation projects
were driven by the population growh faced by the state. He
stated that nodern urban projects often cost nore for non-
construction aspects of the project than the construction
part: the right of way, utility relocation, and traffic
control collectively cost nore than actual construction. He
argued that the continual upgrading of the single G en and
Par ks Hi ghway corridor would end up costing the state nore
than the cost of building the bridge and the subsequent new
roads.

2:50: 38 PM

ANGELA RODELL, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, TREASURY DI VI SI ON
DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE, spoke to the state's financial
exposure if the legislation was passed. She felt that the
project would be a wunique opportunity to make serious
i nvest ment in nmaj or proj ects. She bel i eved t hat
understanding the financial inpact of all of the projects
that could be generated by the building of the bridge
should be understood. She thought that while the noral
obligation may not require additional funding into the
future, outsiders would be observing the state's investnent
comm tnment on a global basis to grow the state.

Co-Chair Stedman understood that the off balance sheet
fi nanci ng nechani sm woul d have potential inpact.

2:53: 30 PM

Senat e Finance Committee 16 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



Ms. Rodell believed that it could have positive inpact. She
thought that it would be viewed in the big picture of the
state's overall fiscal health.

Co-Chair Stedman queried whether the departnent had
reviewed the financial nodel and performed stress testing
to determ ne exposure to the state.

Ms. Rodell replied that the departnent had not done any
stress testing, but had reviewed stress tests performed by
KABATA. She stated that the departnent had concerns wth
sonme of the revenue forecasts pertaining to what the full
i npact would be if a bridge was built and no one showed up
to pay a toll.

2:54:25 PM

Senat or Thonas referred to a letter from Conmm ssioner Bryan
Butcher, dated March 8, 2012 (copy on file). He asked if
the departnment maintained the sanme opinion on the noral
obligation and responsibility of the state.

Ms. Rodell replied that the departnent maintained agreenent
with the statenents in the letter. She noted that the
bridge would belong to the state from day 1, and would
never belong to the independent third party that would
buildit.

2:55:49 PM

JEFF STARK, ASSI STANT ATTORNEY GENERAL, DEPARTMENT OF LAW
testified that he had not prepared testinony.

Co-Chair Stednman reiterated the concern of the exposure to
the state under the project.

M. Stark replied that it was generally accurate that the
state would be largely protected. He state that if KABATA
conpl eted the procurenent process that it was currently in
the mddle of, a contract would be awarded to one of the 3
shortlisted devel opers. He detailed that then KABATA woul d
enter into a public-private agreenment (PPA) with the chosen
contractor, which was currently being drafted by outside

council. He relayed that PPA agreenents were trenendously
conpl ex docunents; nearly 1000 pages  of t echni cal
provi si ons. He expl ai ned t hat PPA  docunents wer e

conprehensive, and would govern the relationship of the
parties for approximately 40 years: 5 years of construction
and 35 years of operation. He stated that the docunment was
tightly drafted, taking care of as many contingenci es as was

Senat e Finance Committee 17 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



possible. He detailed that the basic structure of the
agreenent stated that the developer would be obligated to
design, build, finance, operate, and maintain the bridge
and would be responsible for nost of the cost risks. He
furthered that the geotechnical issues were being carefully
exam ned and represented one of the largest risks for the
state. He believed that in the end the risk would be shared
bet ween the devel oper and the state; the details were still
unknown. He said that the state would bear the cost risks of
possible seismc activity. He concluded that seismc risk
should be the burden of state and KABATA, but that the
devel oper woul d al so carry earthquake insurance.

Co- Chair Stedman asked about cost overrun exposure.

2:59:47 PM

M. Stark clarified that cost overrun exposure would be
carried by the developer, as would hazardous material,
except under the aforenentioned specific events.

3:01: 00 PM

Senat or Egan addressed the docunment titled "Then and Now. A
Hi story of the Knik Arm Crossing.”" He took issue with the
caption under the photo on page 6, which read:

"This is what you wll see as you drive back to
Anchorage from vyour day of business wth the
| egi slature at the capital in WIllow "

#
ADJ OURNVENT
3:01:41 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 3:01 PM

Senat e Finance Committee 18 03/26/12 1: 03 P. M



